





9. Smith has and is responsible for a web site for TIIC in which he stated that he is a “registered

vactmant A Avriaan??

10. In his TIIC web site, Smith states, “We do it all in one shot. Tax preparation, Insurance,
Payroll/Bookkeeping, Investments.” Smith also lists tax preparation, bookkeeping and
payroll, insurance, investments, and annuities as the five different services that he provides.

11. The Division at various times from January 8, 2009, through the present has accessed TIIC’s
web site and seen the statements noted in paragraphs 9 and 10 above.
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assistance in finding the right place to put your money so you can be assured that you are
getting the highest rate possible? We can help you.”

13. Smith submitted a letter to the Division that was received on or about November 8, 2008, in
which Smith stated that he was a “Registered Investment Adviser.”

14. By stating on his web site that he was a registered investment adviser, that he provides
services to clients regarding investments, and that he seeks to assist people to find the right

nlare ta put their manev_Smith has affered to sell investment advisgry serviges.







|
3

— W J
4 *, c

issues or promulgates analyses or reports concerning securities. The term includes a









a. Misrepresenting to any advisory client, or prospective advisory client, the
qualifications of the adviser, its representatives, or any employee, or

misrepresenting the nature of the advisory services being offered or fees to be

charged for such services, or omitting to state a material fact necessary to make
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b. Publishing, circulating, or distributing any advertisement that does not comply
with 17 C.F.R. § 275.206(4)-1, which states that it is a fraudulent, deceptive, or
manipulative act, practice, or course of business for any investment adviser
registered or required to be registered, directly or indirectly, to publish, circulate,
or distribute any advertisement that, among other things, contains any untrue
statement of a material fact, or that is otherwise false or misleading;

c. Engaging in any act, practice, or course of business that is fraudulent, deceptive,
or manipulative in contravention of 15 U.S.C. § 80b-6(4), under which 17 C.F.R.
§ 275.206(4)-1 is applicable; and

d. Employing any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud or engaging in any act,
practice or course of business that operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit.

38. Pursuant to S.C. Reg. § 13-502(B), engaging in other conduct such as non-disclosure,

incomplete disclosure. or decentive practices bv an investment adviser or investment adviser



that, at the time and in the light of the circumstances under which it was made, is false or
misleading in a material respect.

40. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-602(a)(1), the Securities Commissioner may conduct
public or private investigations within or outside South Carolina which the Securities
Commissioner considers necessary or appropriate to determine whether a person has
violated, is violating, or is about to violate the Act or a rule adopted or order issued under the
Act, or to aid in the enforcement of the Act or in the adoption of rules and forms under the
Act.

41. Regarding administrative remedies under the Act:
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determines that a person has engaged. is engaging. or is about to engage ig an act 4

practice, or course of business constituting a violation of the Act or a rule adopted
or order issued under the Act, the Securities Commissioner may issue an order

directing the person to cease and desist from engaging in the act, practice, or
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the Act.

b. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-604(b), a cease and desist order issued under
S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-604(a)(1) is effective on the date of issuance and must
include a statement of any civil penalty or costs of investigation the Securities
Commissioner will seek, a statement of the reasons for the order, and notice about
a hearing,

¢ Puranant to0 S C Cade Ann 8 35-1-604(c). if a hearino is reauested or_ordered
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issued under S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-604(b).

d. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-604(d), in a final order, the Securities
Commissioner may impose a civil penalty in an amount not to exceed ten
thousand dollars ($10,000) for each violation.

e. Pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-604(¢), in a final order, the Securities
Commissioner may charge the actual cost of an investigation or proceeding for a
violation of the Act or a rule adopted or order issued under the Act.

DETERMINATION

42, WHEREAS. based on the forecoing. the Division hag determined that Smith has engaged. is

engaging, or is about to engage in an act, practice, or course of business constituting a
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registered investment adviser, assisted people in finding the right place to
put their money, and assisted people with investments and IRAs.

43. If this Order becomes effective by operation of law, the Division seeks a civil penalty of
$500 from Smith. If Smith seeks a hearing and a hearing officer or some other legal
authority resolves this matter, the Securities Commissioner seeks an amount not to exceed
$10,000 for each violation of the Act by Smith and the actual costs of the investigation.

CEASE AND DESIST ORDER

44. NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to S.C. Code Ann. § 35-1-604(a)(1) of the Act, IT IS

HEREBY ORDERED that Smith:

a. Cease and desist from transacting business, in violation of S.C. Code Ann. §§ 35-
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